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Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 

Directors’ Report 

 

 

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial 

statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. 

 

Principal activities 

 

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding and provision of management 

services while the principal activities of the Group are the operations of a palm oil refinery and 

kernel crushing plant, cultivation of oil palm, processing of fresh fruit bunches, sales of related 

products and letting of property. 

 

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are as set out in Note 14 to the financial statements. 

 

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Group and 

of the Company during the financial year. 

 

Results 

 Group Company 

 RM RM 

 

Profit net of tax  33,016,553 2,038,253 

 ======== ======== 

 

Profit for the year attributable to: 

Owners of the Company 33,291,065 2,038,253 

Non-controlling interests (274,512) - 

 –––––––––– ––––––––– 

 33,016,553 2,038,253 

 ========= ======== 

 

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company 

during the financial year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a 

material and unusual nature.  

 

Reserves and provisions 

 

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year 

other than those as disclosed in the financial statements. 
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Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 

Directors’ Report 

 

 

Dividends 

 

The amount of dividend paid by the Company since 31 December 2013 was as follows: 

 

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013: 

    RM 

Final tax exempt (single tier) dividend of 5% on 93,500,000 ordinary  

  shares declared on 26 June 2014 and paid on 31 July 2014 4,675,000 

  ======= 

  

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final tax exempt (single tier) dividend in respect 

of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 of 4% on 93,500,000 ordinary shares will be 

proposed for shareholders‘ approval. The financial statements for the current financial year do 

not reflect this proposed dividend.  Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be 

accounted for in the Statement of Changes in Equity as an appropriation of retained earnings 

in the financial year ending 31 December 2015. 

 

Directors 

 

The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the 

date of this report are: 

 

Dato Henry Lau Lee Kong 

Tuan Haji Wan Abdillah Bin Wan Hamid 

Robert Lau Hui Yew  

Chong Chon Chee  

Datuk Haji Hamden Bin Haji Ahmad  

 

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company‘s Articles of Association, all the directors retire 

at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.   

 

Directors’ benefits 

 

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any 

arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by 

means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate. 

 

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to 

receive a benefit (other than those benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments 

received or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the 

Company as shown in Note 8 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the 

Company or a related corporation with any director or with a firm of which he is a member, or 

with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed in Note 24 

to the financial statements. 
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Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 

Directors’ Report 

 

 

Directors’ interests 

 

According to the register of directors‘ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the 

end of the financial year in shares in the Company during the financial year were as follows: 

 

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each 

 At   At 

 1.1.2014 Acquired Sold 31.12.2014 

Direct Interest     

Tuan Haji Wan Abdillah Bin Wan Hamid 104,821 - - 104,821 

Robert Lau Hui Yew 100,000 - - 100,000 

Chong Chon Chee 40,000 - - 40,000 

     

Indirect Interest     

Dato Henry Lau Lee Kong 36,355,029 297,247 - 36,652,276 

Tuan Haji Wan Abdillah Bin Wan Hamid 17,085,607 - - 17,085,607 

Robert Lau Hui Yew 34,108,634 - - 34,108,634 

 

There were no other movements in shares of the Company during the financial year. 

 

By virtue of their interests in the shares of BLD Plantation Bhd. and Section 6A of the 

Companies Act, 1965, Dato Henry Lau Lee Kong, Tuan Haji Wan Abdillah Bin Wan Hamid 

and Robert Lau Hui Yew are also deemed interested in the shares of the subsidiaries of BLD 

Plantation Bhd. to the extent that BLD Plantation Bhd. has an interest. 

 

The other director in office at the end of the financial year did not have any interest in shares in 

the Company or its related corporations during the financial year. 

 

Other statutory information 

 

(a) Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of 

the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps: 

 

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad 

debts and the making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves 

that there were no known bad debts and that no provision for doubtful debts was 

necessary; and 

 

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as 

shown in the accounting records in the ordinary course of business had been 

written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise. 
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Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 

Directors’ Report 

 

 

Other statutory information (contd.) 

  

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would 

render: 

 

 (i) it necessary to write off any bad debts or to make any provision for doubtful 

debts in respect of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company; 

and 

 

 (ii) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group 

and of the Company misleading. 

 

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have 

arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or 

liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate. 

 

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise 

dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which 

would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading. 

 

(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist: 

 

 (i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since 

the end of the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or 

 

(ii) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since 

the end of the financial year. 

 

(f) In the opinion of the directors: 

 

 (i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become 

enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year 

which will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet their 

obligations as and when they fall due; and 

 

 (ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the 

interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is 

likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the 

Company for the financial year in which this report is made. 
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Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 

Directors’ Report 

 

 

Auditors 

 

The auditors, McMillan Woods Mea, have expressed their willingness to continue in office. 

 

 

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 28 April 

2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dato Henry Lau Lee Kong   Tuan Haji Wan Abdillah Bin Wan Hamid 
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Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 

Statement by Directors pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965 

 

 

We, Dato Henry Lau Lee Kong and Tuan Haji Wan Abdillah Bin Wan Hamid, being two 

of the directors of BLD Plantation Bhd., do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, 

the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 10 to 82 are drawn up in accordance 

with Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in 

Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the 

Company as at 31 December 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the 

financial year then ended. 

 

The supplementary information set out in Note 31 to the financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised 

and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia 

Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 28 April 

2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

Dato Henry Lau Lee Kong   Tuan Haji Wan Abdillah Bin Wan Hamid 

 

 

 

 

Statutory Declaration pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965 

 

 

I, Dato Henry Lau Lee Kong, being the director primarily responsible for the financial 

management of BLD Plantation Bhd., do solemnly and sincerely declare that the 

accompanying financial statements set out on pages 10 to 82 are in my opinion correct, and I 

make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the 

provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960. 

 

 

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the  

abovenamed Dato Henry Lau Lee Kong  

at Kuching in the State of Sarawak    

on 28 April 2015 Dato Henry Lau Lee Kong 

 

 

Before me, 
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of  

BLD Plantation Berhad  
Company No:562199- A 

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 

 

We have audited the financial statements of BLD Plantation Berhad, which comprise the 

statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014 of the Group and of the Company, and 

the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash 

flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 10 to 82. 

 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that 

give a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements 

of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal 

control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

Auditors' Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement. 
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, 

including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to 

the Company's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

financial statements.  

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion. 
 

McMillan Woods Mea (AF 1995) 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
P11-1-1A Plot 11, Chonglin Park, Tabuan Road, 92350 Kuching, Sarawak. 

Tel no. 082422550 Fax no. 082422559 
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of  

BLD Plantation Berhad (continued) 
Company No: 562199- A  

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 
Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with 

Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so 

as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and Company as at 31 

December 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the 

following: 

 

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act, to 

be kept by the Company and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act. 

 

(b) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with 

the Company's financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for 

the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have 

received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes. 

 

(c) Our audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or 

any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act. 

 

Other reporting responsibilities 

 

The supplementary information set out in Note 31 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa 

Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are 

responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance 

on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the 

Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as 

issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("MIA Guidance") and the directive of Bursa 

Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all 

material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia 

Securities Berhad. 
 

McMillan Woods Mea (AF 1995) 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
P11-1-1A Plot 11, Chonglin Park, Tabuan Road, 92350 Kuching, Sarawak. 

Tel no. 082422550 Fax no. 082422559 
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of  

BLD Plantation Berhad (continued)    
Company No: 562199- A 

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 
Other Matters 

 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 

Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not 

assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

 
 

 

 

 

McMillan Woods Mea     Mea Fatt Leong 

Firm No. AF1995       No. 1346/8/15 

Chartered Accountants     Partner of the firm  

 

Kuching, Sarawak     

28 April 2015 

 

 

 

 
 

 

McMillan Woods Mea (AF 1995) 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
P11-1-1A Plot 11, Chonglin Park, Tabuan Road, 92350 Kuching, Sarawak. 

Tel no. 082422550 Fax no. 082422559 
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Company No: 562199-A 
 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  
 

Statements of Comprehensive Income  

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 

 

 

 Group Company 

 Note 2014 2013 2014 2013 

  RM RM RM RM 

   

Revenue 4 1,558,192,027 1,634,465,658 6,151,082 10,516,855 

 

Cost of sales  (1,449,761,402) (1,536,685,905) - - 

  –––––––––––– ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

Gross profit  108,430,625 97,779,753 6,151,082 10,516,855 

 

Other items of income 

 Interest income  6,421,335 5,945,939 - - 

 Other income  933,842 37,430 - - 

 

Other items of expense 

 Selling expenses  (37,309,560) (34,365,063) - - 

 Administrative expenses  (21,014,863) (20,820,992) (2,820,244) (2,561,514) 

 Finance costs 5 (10,811,566) (12,051,604) (438,714) - 

  ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

Profit before tax 6 46,649,813  36,525,463 2,892,124 7,955,341 

 

Tax (expense)/income 9 (13,633,260) 328,300 (853,871) (2,069,138) 

  ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

Profit for the year, net 

 of tax, representing 

 total comprehensive 

 income for the year  33,016,553 36,853,763 2,038,253  5,886,203 

   ========== ========= ========= ========= 

 

Profit attributable to:  

 Owners of the Company  33,291,065 37,063,065 2,038,253 5,886,203 

 Non-controlling interests  (274,512) (209,302) - - 

  ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

   33,016,553 36,853,763 2,038,253 5,886,203 

  ========== ========= ========= ========= 

 

Earnings per share attributable 

 to owners of the Company 

 (sen per share): 

 

Basic 10 35.60 41.39 

  ===== ===== 

 

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the 

financial statements. 
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Company No: 562199-A 
 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  
 

Statements of Financial Position  

As at 31 December 2014 
 
 

 Group Company 

 Note 2014 2013 2014 2013 

  RM RM RM RM 

ASSETS 
 

Non-current assets 

Biological assets 12 515,597,589 502,437,910 - - 

Property, plant and 

 equipment 13 383,627,240 388,823,388 33,375 39,196 

Investments in  

 subsidiaries 14 - - 82,542,959 82,542,959 

Deferred tax assets 16 - 1,308,039 - - 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– 

  899,224,829 892,569,337 82,576,334 82,582,155 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Current assets 

Inventories 17 126,533,449 156,852,413 - - 

Trade and other  

 receivables 18 46,739,258 123,028,112 106,512,145 88,487,764 

Prepaid operating 

 expenses  483,707 1,634,400 3,650 3,403 

Tax recoverable  4,115,735 5,258,693 59,055 82,926 

Cash and bank balances 19 353,069,698 263,175,736 25,269,057 20,678,385 

  –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

  530,941,847 549,949,354 131,843,907 109,252,478  

  –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,430,166,676 1,442,518,691 214,420,241 191,834,633 

  =========== ========== ========= ========= 
 

EQUITY AND 

 LIABILITIES 
 

Current liabilities 

Derivatives  20 1,230,957 1,858,926 - - 

Loans and borrowings 21 234,317,782 269,501,515 25,000,000 - 

Trade and other  

 payables 22 102,467,194 114,475,084 632,326 409,971 

  ––––––––––– ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

  338,015,933 385,835,525 25,632,326 409,971 

  ––––––––––– ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

Net current assets  192,925,914 164,113,829 106,211,581 108,842,507  

  ––––––––––– ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 
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Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  

 

Statements of Financial Position  

As at 31 December 2014 (contd.) 

 

 

 Group Company 

 Note 2014 2013 2014 2013 

  RM RM RM RM 

EQUITY AND 

 LIABILITIES (contd.) 

 

Non-current liabilities      

Deferred tax liabilities 16 150,044,894 145,125,701 - - 

Loans and borrowings 21 140,730,805 138,523,974 - - 

  ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

  290,775,699 283,649,675 - - 

  ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  628,791,632 669,485,200 25,632,326 409,971 

  ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

Net assets  801,375,044 773,033,491 188,787,915 191,424,662 

  ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

 

Equity attributable to  

 owners of the  

 Company 

Share capital 23 93,500,000 93,500,000 93,500,000 93,500,000 

Share premium 23 79,680,555 79,680,555 79,680,555 79,680,555 

Retained earnings  627,165,945 598,549,880 15,607,360 18,244,107 

  ––––––––––– ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

    800,346,500 771,730,435 188,787,915 191,424,662 

Non-controlling interests  1,028,544 1,303,056 - - 

  ––––––––––– ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

TOTAL EQUITY  801,375,044 773,033,491 188,787,915 191,424,662 

  ––––––––––– ––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

TOTAL EQUITY AND  

 LIABILITIES   1,430,166,676 1,442,518,691 214,420,241 191,834,633 

  ========== ========== ========= ========== 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the 

financial statements. 
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Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  

 

Statements of Changes in Equity  

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014  

 

 

 Attributable to owners of the Company  

 Non-distributable Distributable 

    Equity     

   attributable    Non- 

  Equity, to owners of Share Share Retained controlling 

 Note total the Company capital premium earnings interests

    (Note 23) (Note 23)   

  RM RM RM RM RM RM 

Group 

 

At 1 January 2013     675,010,862 673,266,170 85,000,000 22,104,355 566,161,815 1,744,692 

Total comprehensive income  36,853,763 37,063,065 - - 37,063,065 (209,302) 

 

Transactions with owners       

  

Issuance of new ordinary shares 

  pursuant to private placement  66,076,200 66,076,200 8,500,000 57,576,200 - - 

Dividends on ordinary shares 11  (4,675,000) (4,675,000) - - (4,675,000) - 

Dividend paid to non-controlling 

  interests  (232,334) - - - - (232,334) 

        

  61,168,866 61,401,200 8,500,000 57,576,200 (4,675,000) (232,334) 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

At 31 December 2013     773,033,491 771,730,435 93,500,000 79,680,555 598,549,880 1,303,056 

  ========= ========= ======== ========= ========= ========= 
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Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  

 

Statements of Changes in Equity  

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (contd.) 

 

 

 Attributable to owners of the Company  

 Non-distributable Distributable 

    Equity     

   attributable    Non- 

  Equity, to owners of Share Share Retained controlling 

 Note total the Company capital premium earnings interests

    (Note 23) (Note 23)    

  RM RM RM RM RM RM 

Group (contd.) 

 

At 1 January 2014     773,033,491 771,730,435 93,500,000 79,680,555 598,549,880 1,303,056 

 

Total comprehensive income  33,016,553 33,291,065 - - 33,291,065 (274,512) 

 

Transactions with owners 

        

Dividends on ordinary shares 11  (4,675,000) (4,675,000) - - (4,675,000) - 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

At 31 December 2014     801,375,044 800,346,500 93,500,000 79,680,555 627,165,945 1,028,544 

  ========= ========= ======== ========= ========= ========= 
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Company No: 562199-A 
 
BLD Plantation Bhd.  
 
Statements of Changes in Equity  

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (contd.)  
 
 

 Non-distributable Distributable 

   Equity, Share Share  Retained 

 Note  total capital premium  earnings 

   (Note 23)  (Note 23)  

  RM RM RM RM 

Company 
 
At 1 January 2013     124,137,259 85,000,000 22,104,355 17,032,904 

Total comprehensive income  5,886,203 - - 5,886,203 
 
Transaction with owners      

Issuance of new ordinary shares pursuant 

  to private placement  66,076,200 8,500,000 57,576,200 - 

Dividends on ordinary shares 11 (4,675,000) - - (4,675,000) 

  61,401,200 8,500,000 57,576,200 (4,675,000) 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––– 

At 31 December 2013     191,424,662 93,500,000 79,680,555 18,244,107 

  ========= ========= ======== ========= 

At 1 January 2014     191,424,662 93,500,000 79,680,555 18,244,107 

Total comprehensive income  2,038,253 - - 2,038,253 
 
Transaction with owners      

Dividends on ordinary shares 11 (4,675,000) - - (4,675,000) 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––– 

At 31 December 2014     188,787,915 93,500,000 79,680,555 15,607,360 

  ========= ========= ======== ========= 

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd.  

 

Statements of Cash Flows  

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 

 

 

 Note 2014 2013 

  RM RM 

Group 

    

Operating activities 

Profit before tax   46,649,813 36,525,463 

 

Adjustments for: 

 Interest expense 5 10,811,566 12,051,604 

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 28,182,232 27,906,379 

 (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and  

 equipment  (210,826) 27,871 

 Interest income  (6,605,671) (6,300,356) 

 Impairment of goodwill on consolidation  - 82,137 

 Net fair value (gain)/loss on derivatives  (627,969) 2,054,591 

 Net unrealised foreign exchange gain  (2,957,307) (2,204,543) 

 

Total adjustments  28,592,025 33,617,683  

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Operating cash flows before changes in  

 working capital  75,241,838 70,143,146 

 

Changes in working capital 

 Decrease/(Increase) in inventories  30,318,964  (18,793,152) 

 Decrease/(Increase) in receivables  76,217,384  (63,702,698) 

 Decrease in prepaid operating expenses  1,150,693 106,977  

 Decrease in payables   (12,007,890) (9,345,706) 

 

Total changes in working capital  95,679,151 (91,734,579) 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– 

Cash flows from/(used in) operations  170,920,989  (21,591,433) 

 

Interest received  6,605,671 6,300,356  

Income tax paid, net of refund  (6,263,070) 2,947,275  

  –––––––––– –––––––––– 

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities  171,263,590  (12,343,802) 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– 
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BLD Plantation Bhd.  

 

Statements of Cash Flows  

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (contd.) 

 

 

 Note 2014 2013 

  RM RM 

Group  

 

Investing activities 

Acquisition of biological assets 

 (net of interest capitalised) 12 (8,430,857) (13,734,784) 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  13 (23,137,758) (30,715,244) 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  

 and equipment  362,500 65,544 

  ––––––––––– –––––––––– 

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (31,206,115) (44,384,484) 

  ––––––––––– –––––––––– 

 

Financing activities    

Proceeds from private placement of shares,  

  net of expenses  - 66,076,200 

Dividends paid to owners of the Company 11 (4,675,000) (4,675,000) 

Dividends paid by a subsidiary to    

 non-controlling interests  - (232,334) 

Proceeds from term loans  43,441,817 4,251,329  

Repayment of term loans  (35,338,974) (30,100,071) 

Proceeds from revolving credit  186,000,000 119,000,000 

Repayment of revolving credit  (202,000,000) (45,022,311) 

Proceeds from Tawarruq flexi-term financing-i  - 10,000,000 

Repayment of Tawarruq flexi-term financing-i  (10,000,000) - 

Proceeds from bankers‘ acceptances  1,134,776,960 1,149,517,000 

Repayment of bankers‘ acceptances  (1,150,219,960) (1,223,002,377) 

Interest paid 5 (15,540,388) (17,811,309) 

  ––––––––––– ––––––––– 

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities  (53,555,545) 28,001,127 

  ––––––––––– ––––––––– 

 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  86,501,930  (28,727,159) 

 

Effect of exchange rate changes  3,028,777 2,169,346 

 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  261,347,148  287,904,961 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 19 350,877,855 261,347,148 

  ========= ========= 
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BLD Plantation Bhd.  

 

Statements of Cash Flows  

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (contd.) 

 

 

 Note 2014 2013 

  RM RM 

Company 

 

Operating activities 

Profit before tax   2,892,124 7,955,341 

 

Adjustments for: 

 Interest expense       5  

 Dividend income  - (6,615,000) 

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 9,341 15,325 

 Interest income  (5,478,882) (3,242,405) 

 

Total adjustments  (5,030,827) (9,842,080) 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Operating cash flows before changes in  

 working capital  (2,138,703) (1,886,739) 

 

Changes in working capital 

 Increase in receivables  (18,024,381) (47,991,210) 

 (Increase)/decrease in prepaid operating expenses  (247) 251 

 Increase/(decrease) in payables  222,355 (8,488) 

  

Total changes in working capital  (17,802,273) (47,999,447) 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Cash flows used in operations  (19,940,976)  (49,886,186) 

 

Interest received  5,478,882 3,242,405 

Income taxes paid, net of refund  (830,000) (400,000) 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Net cash used in operating activities  (15,292,094) (47,043,781) 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Investing activities    

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 13 (3,520) (3,872) 

Dividends received  - 4,961,250 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities  (3,520) 4,957,378 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 
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BLD Plantation Bhd.  

 

Statements of Cash Flows  

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (contd.) 

 

 

 Note 2014 2013 

  RM RM 

Company 

 

Financing activities    

Proceeds from private placement of shares, 

  net of expenses  - 66,076,200 

Dividends paid on ordinary shares 11 (4,675,000) (4,675,000) 

Proceeds from revolving credit  45,000,000 - 

Repayment of revolving credit  (20,000,000) - 

Interest paid 5 (438,714) - 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Net cash flows from financing activities  19,886,286 61,401,200 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 

 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  4,590,672 19,314,797 

 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  20,678,385 1,363,588 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 19  25,269,057 20,678,385 

  ======== ======== 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the 

financial statements. 
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BLD Plantation Bhd. 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 

 

 

1. Corporate information 

 

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in 

Malaysia and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The 

registered office is located at Level 6, Crown Towers, 88 Jalan Pending, 93450 

Kuching, Sarawak. 

 

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding and provision of 

management services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 

to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of the 

principal activities of the Group and of the Company during the financial year.   

 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

 

  The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in 

accordance with Financial Reporting Standards (―FRS‖) and the Companies Act, 1965 

in Malaysia.  

 

 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have also been prepared on 

the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below and are 

presented in Ringgit Malaysia (―RM‖).   

  

2.2 Changes in accounting policies  

 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with prevailing established guidelines 

described in FRS and IC Interpretations wherever applicable and relevant. The 

adoption of the FRS and IC Interpretations effective for annual financial periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2014 did not have any effect on the financial position 

of the Group or of the Company.  

 

2.3 Amendments/standards issued but not yet effective 

 

The amendments/standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up 

to the date of issuance of the Group‘s and of the Company‘s financial statements are 

disclosed below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these 

amendments/standards, if applicable, when they become effective. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.3 Amendments/standards issued but not yet effective (contd.) 

 

FRS effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 

 

 Amendments to FRS 2, FRS 3, FRS 8, FRS 116, FRS 124 and FRS 138, Annual 

Improvements 2010 - 2012 Cycle 

 Amendments to FRS 3, FRS 13 and FRS 140, Annual Improvements 2011 – 

2013 Cycle 

 Amendments to FRS 119, Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 

 

FRS effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 

 

 Amendments to FRS 116 and FRS 138, Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 

Depreciation and Amortisation 

 Amendments to FRS 11, Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 

Operations 

 Amendments to FRS 127, Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 

 Amendments to FRS 10 and FRS 128, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 

 Amendments to FRS 10, FRS 12 and FRS 128, Investment Entities: Applying the 

Consolidated Exception 

 Amendments to FRS 5, FRS 7, FRS 119 and FRS 134, Annual Improvements to 

FRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 

 FRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts 

 Amendments to FRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements - Initiative 

Disclosure 

 

FRS effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 

 

 FRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in July 2014) 
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BLD Plantation Bhd. 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 

 

 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.3 Amendments/standards issued but not yet effective (contd.) 

 

The directors expect that the adoption of the above amendments / standards and 

interpretations will have no material impact on the financial statements in the period 

of initial application. The nature of the impending changes in accounting policies on 

adoption of applicable amendments / standards are described below: 

 

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 

 

 Amendments to FRS 119, Defined Benefits Plans: Employee Contributions 

 

The amendments to FRS 119 introduce a practical expedient for employee or 

third party contributions set out in the formal terms of the plan that are linked to 

service and independent of the number of years of services. 

 

The Company plans to apply the amendments to FRS 119 retrospective from the 

annual period beginning on 1 January 2015, and is currently assessing the 

financial impact that may arise from the initial application of the amendments. 

 

 FRS 9 Financial Instruments 

 

FRS 9 replaces the guidance in FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement on the classification and measurement of financial assets. Upon 

adoption of FRS 9, financial assets will be measured at either fair value or 

amortised cost. 

 

The adoption of FRS 9 will result in a change in accounting policy. The 

Company is currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from the 

adoption of FRS 9. 
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BLD Plantation Bhd. 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 

 

 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.3 Amendments/standards issued but not yet effective (contd.) 

 

Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards  

 

On 19 November 2011, the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) issued a 

new MASB approved accounting framework, the Malaysian Financial Reporting 

Standards (MFRS Framework). 

 

The MFRS Framework is to be applied by all Entities Other Than Private Entities for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, with the exception of entities 

that are within the scope of MFRS 141 Agriculture (MFRS 141) and IC Interpretation 

15 Agreements for Construction of Real Estate (IC 15), including its parent, 

significant investor and venturer (herein called ‗Transitioning Entities‘). 

 

Transitioning Entities will be allowed to defer adoption of the new MFRS Framework 

for additional five years. Consequently, adoption of the MFRS Framework by 

Transitioning Entities will be mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2017. 

 

The Group falls within the scope definition of Transitioning Entities and accordingly, 

will be required to prepare financial statements using the MFRS Framework in its 

first MFRS financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2017. In presenting 

its first MFRS financial statements, the Group will be required to restate the 

comparative financial statements to amount reflecting the application of MFRS 

Framework.  The majority of the adjustments required on transition will be made, 

retrospectively, against opening retained profits. 

 

At the date of these financial statements, the Company has not completed its 

quantification of the financial effects of the differences between Financial Reporting 

Standards and accounting standards under the MFRS Framework due to the ongoing 

assessment by the project team. Accordingly, the financial performance and financial 

position as disclosed in these financial statements for the period ended 31 December 

2014 could be different if prepared under the MFRS Framework.  
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 

 

 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.4 Basis of consolidation 

 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the 

Company and its subsidiaries as at the reporting date. The financial statements of the 

subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are 

prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies 

are applied for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.  

 

The Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the following: 

 

(a) Power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct 

the relevant activities of the investee); 

 

(b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and  

 

(c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.  

 

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, the 

Company considers the following in assessing whether or not the Company‘s voting 

rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power over the investee: 

 

(a) The size of the Company‘s holding of voting rights relative to the size and 

dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;  

 

(b) Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties; 

 

(c) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and  

 

(d) Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or 

does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that 

decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders‘ 

meetings.  

 

Subsidiaries are consolidated when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary 

and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. All intra-group 

balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-

group transactions are eliminated in full. 

 

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that 

results in a deficit balance.  
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.4 Basis of consolidation (contd.) 

 

Changes in the Group‘s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the 

Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. 

The carrying amounts of the Group‘s interests and the non-controlling interests are 

adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. The 

resulting difference is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the 

Company.  

 

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss calculated as the 

difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and 

the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the 

assets and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest, is recognised 

in profit or loss. The subsidiary‘s cumulative gain or loss which has been recognised 

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or 

loss or where applicable, transferred directly to retained earnings. The fair value of 

any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date control is lost is regarded 

as the cost on initial recognition of the investment.  

 

Business combinations 

 

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost 

of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, 

measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling 

interests in the acquiree. The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis 

whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or 

at the proportionate share of the acquiree‘s identifiable net assets. Transaction costs 

incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses.  

 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at 

fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the 

contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be 

recognised in accordance with FRS 139 either in profit or loss or as a change to other 

comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it will 

not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances 

where the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of FRS 139, it is 

measured in accordance with the appropriate FRS. 

 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities 

assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the 

contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the 

acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host 

contracts by the acquiree. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.4 Basis of consolidation (contd.) 

 

Business combinations (contd.) 

 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the 

acquirer‘s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at 

the acquisition date through profit or loss.  

 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the 

consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests over 

the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is 

lower than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is 

recognised in profit or loss. The accounting policy for goodwill is set out in Note 2.6. 

 

2.5 Subsidiaries 

 

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has all the following: 

 

(a) Power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to 

direct the relevant activities of the investee); 
 

(b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; 

and 

 

(c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 

 

In the Company‘s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are 

accounted for at cost less impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the 

difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in 

profit and loss. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.6 Goodwill  

 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is 

measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.  

 

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the 

acquisition date, to each of the Group‘s cash-generating units that are expected to 

benefit from the synergies of the combination.  

 

The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for 

impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit 

may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, 

including the allocated goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the cash-generating 

unit. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the 

carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment 

losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.  

 

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within 

that cash-generating unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation 

disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the 

gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is 

measured based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the 

portion of the cash-generating unit retained.  

 

2.7 Biological assets 

 

Plantation expenditure incurred on land clearing, upkeep of immature oil palms, 

administrative expenses and interest incurred during the pre-cropping period are 

capitalised under biological assets and are not amortised. Upon maturity, all subsequent 

maintenance expenditure is charged to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Replanting expenditure incurred on similar crops on formerly developed areas is 

chargeable to the statement of comprehensive income in the financial year in which it 

is incurred. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.8 Property, plant and equipment 

 

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of 

an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is 

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group 

and the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

 

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts 

of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group 

and the Company recognise such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives 

and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its 

cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement 

if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are 

recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

 

Leasehold land are amortised over their lease terms. Depreciation is computed on a 

straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

 

Buildings 10 to 50 years 

Furniture, fittings and equipment 1 to 10 years 

Plant and machinery 2 to 15 years 

Motor vehicles 5 years 

Ranch 10 years  

Renovation 10 years   

 

Capital work-in-progress included in plant and equipment are not depreciated as these 

assets are not yet available for use. 

 

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when 

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be 

recoverable. 

 

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial 

year-end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on 

derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the asset is 

derecognised. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.9 Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, and 

short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of 

cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the 

purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net 

of bank overdrafts.  

 

2.10 Inventories 

 

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value, other than for certain 

contracted finished goods, which are stated at net realisable value. Cost incurred in 

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition are accounted for as 

follows: 

 

- Raw materials and consumables: costs of purchase on a weighted average cost 

formula or specific identification basis. 

- Finished goods and work-in-progress: costs of raw materials, direct labour, other 

direct costs and appropriate proportions of manufacturing overheads based on 

normal operating capacity.   

- Livestock: purchase price and estimated natural increase plus incidentals.   

 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business 

less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

 

2.11 Income taxes 

 

(a) Current tax  

 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws 

used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted 

by the reporting date. 

 

Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax 

relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive 

income or directly in equity. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.11 Income tax (contd.) 

 

(b) Deferred tax 

  

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at 

the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except: 

 

- where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of 

goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

 

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments 

in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the 

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and 

it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 

foreseeable future.  

 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, 

carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it 

is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 

temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 

tax losses can be utilised except:  

 

- where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary 

difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or 

loss; and  

 

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with 

investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, 

deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable 

that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and 

taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences 

can be utilised.  
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.11 Income taxes (contd.) 

 

(b) Deferred tax (contd.) 

 

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date 

and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 

profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 

utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date 

and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 

profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised.   

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are 

expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is 

settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 

enacted at the reporting date.  

 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised 

outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the 

underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in 

equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against 

goodwill on acquisition.  

 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally 

enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax 

liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 

taxation authority. 

 

(c) Sales tax 

 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax 

except: 

 

- Where the sales tax incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not 

recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is 

recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the 

expense item as applicable; and 

 

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax 

included. 

 

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation 

authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statements of 

financial position. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets 

 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset 

may be impaired.  If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment 

assessment for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset‘s 

recoverable amount.  

 

An asset‘s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset‘s fair value less costs to sell 

and its value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at 

the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-

generating units (―CGU‖)). 

 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by 

the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, 

the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in 

respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying 

amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups of units and then, to 

reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-

rata basis.   

 

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.   

 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 

previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change 

in the estimates used to determine the asset‘s recoverable amount since the last 

impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is 

increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount 

that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 

recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment loss 

on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. 
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2.13 Financial assets 

 

Financial assets are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only 

when, the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the 

financial instrument.  

 

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in 

the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable 

transaction costs.   

 

The Group and the Company determine the classification of their financial assets at 

initial recognition, and the categories include financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss and loans and receivables.  

 

 

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss if they are held for trading or are designated as such upon initial 

recognition. Financial assets held for trading are derivatives (including 

separated embedded derivatives) or financial assets acquired principally for 

the purpose of selling in the near term. 

 

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in 

fair value are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or net losses on financial 

assets at fair value through profit or loss do not include exchange differences, 

interest and dividend income. Exchange differences, interest and dividend 

income on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised 

separately in profit or loss as part of other losses or other income.  

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as 

current or non-current. Financial assets that are held primarily for trading 

purposes are presented as current whereas financial assets that are not held 

primarily for trading purposes are presented as current or non-current based on 

the settlement date.   
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.13 Financial assets (contd.) 

 

 (b) Loans and receivables 

 

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 

active market are classified as loans and receivables. 

 

Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are 

recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or 

impaired, and through the amortisation process.  

 

Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having 

maturity dates later than 12 months after the reporting date which are 

classified as non-current. 

 

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows 

from the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the 

difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and 

any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income 

is recognised in profit or loss.  

 

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require 

delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention 

in the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets 

are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the Group and the 

Company commit to purchase or sell the asset. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.14 Impairment of financial assets 

 

The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective 

evidence that a financial asset is impaired. 

 

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost 

 

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial 

assets has been incurred, the Group and the Company consider factors such as the 

probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default 

or significant delay in payments. For certain categories of financial assets, such as 

trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are 

subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk 

characteristics. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could 

include the Group‘s and the Company's past experience of collecting payments, an 

increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit 

period and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate 

with default on receivables. 

 

If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the 

difference between the asset‘s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 

future cash flows discounted at the financial asset‘s original effective interest rate. 

The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly 

for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying 

amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable 

becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.  

 

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the 

decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was 

recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that 

the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal 

date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.15 Financial liabilities 

 

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual 

arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability. 

 

Financial liabilities, within the scope of FRS 139, are recognised in the statement of 

financial position when, and only when, the Group and the Company become a party 

to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial liabilities are 

classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other 

financial liabilities. 

 

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

 

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities 

held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at 

fair value through profit or loss. 

 

 Financial liabilities held for trading include derivatives entered into by the 

Group that do not meet the hedge accounting criteria.  Derivative liabilities are 

initially measured at fair value and subsequently stated at fair value, with any 

resultant gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses on 

derivatives include exchange differences. 

 

(b) Other financial liabilities 

 

The Group‘s and the Company‘s financial liabilities include trade payables, 

other payables and loans and borrowings. 

 

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly 

attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using the effective interest method. 

 

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction 

costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless 

the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at 

least 12 months after the reporting date. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.15 Financial liabilities (contd.) 

 

(b) Other financial liabilities (contd.) 

 

For other financial liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when 

the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.  

 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is 

extinguished. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the 

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

2.16 Financial guarantee contracts  

 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified 

payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified receivable 

fails to make payment when due.  

 

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, net of 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are 

recognised as income in profit or loss over the period of the guarantee. If the 

receivable fails to make payment relating to financial guarantee contract when it is 

due and the Group/Company, as the issuer, is required to reimburse the holder for the 

associated loss, the liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate of the 

expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date and the 

amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.  
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.17 Leases 
 

(a) As lessee 
 

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the 

inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the 

present value of the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also 

added to the amount capitalised. Lease payments are apportioned between the 

finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant 

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 

charged to profit or loss. Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses in 

the periods in which they are incurred.  

 

Leased assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. 

However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain 

ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the 

shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease term. 

 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives 

provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the 

lease term on a straight-line basis.  

 

(b) As lessor 

  

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs 

incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of 

the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental 

income. The accounting policy for rental income is set out in Note 2.20(d).  

 

2.18 Borrowing costs 

 

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are 

directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of that asset. 

Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset 

for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs 

are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially 

completed for their intended use or sale.  
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.18 Borrowing costs (contd.) 

 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are 

incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group and the 

Company incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

 

2.19 Foreign currency  

 

(a) Functional and presentation currency 

 

 The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured 

using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity 

operates (―the functional currency‖). The consolidated financial statements are 

presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company‘s functional 

currency.   

 

(b) Foreign currency transactions 

 

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional 

currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial 

recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those 

ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 

foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting 

date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are 

measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the 

dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign 

currencies measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the 

date when the fair value was determined. 

 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on 

translating monetary items at the reporting date are recognised in profit or 

loss. 

 

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried 

at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for the 

differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in respect of 

which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences 

arising from such non-monetary items are also recognised directly in equity. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.20 Revenue  

   

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will 

flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the 

fair value of consideration received or receivable.  

 

(a) Sale of goods 

 

Revenue is recognised net of sales taxes and discounts upon the transfer of 

significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the customer.  

Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant uncertainties 

regarding recovery of consideration due, associated costs or the possible return 

of goods. 

 

 (b) Dividend income 

 

 Dividend income is recognised when the Group‘s and the Company‘s right to 

receive payment is established. 

 

 (c) Interest income 

 

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest 

method. 

 

(d) Rental income 

 

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The 

aggregate costs of incentives provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction of 

rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

 

(e) Management fees 

 

 Management fees are recognised when services are rendered. 

 

 



 

- 41 - 

Company No: 562199-A 

 

BLD Plantation Bhd. 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the financial year ended 31 December 2014 

 

 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.21 Employee benefits 

 

 Defined contribution plans 

 

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the 

countries in which it has operations. The companies in the Group make contributions 

to the Employees‘ Provident Fund in Malaysia, a defined contribution pension 

scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an 

expense in the period in which the related service is performed or capitalised in 

biological assets, as appropriate. 

 

2.22 Segment reporting 

 

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on 

their products and services which are independently managed by the respective 

segment managers responsible for the performance of the respective segments under 

their charge. The segment managers report directly to the management of the 

Company who regularly review the segment results in order to allocate resources to 

the segments and to assess the segment performance. Additional disclosure on each of 

these segments are shown in Note 29, including the factors used to identify the 

reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information. 

 

2.23 Share capital and share issuance expenses 

  

 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 

the Group and the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are 

equity instruments. 

 

 Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable 

incremental transaction costs. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on 

ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared. 

 

2.24 Contingencies 

 

A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or asset that arises from past 

events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. 

 

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial 

position of the Group and the Company. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contd.) 

 

2.25 Derivative financial instruments 

 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to 

hedge its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially 

recognised at fair value on the date in which a derivative contract is entered into and 

are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets 

when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is 

negative. 

 

3. Significant accounting estimates  

 

The preparation of the Group‘s and the Company‘s financial statements requires 

management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent 

liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and 

estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the 

carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future. 

 

  Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation 

uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 

year are discussed below. 

 

(a) Impairment of goodwill 

 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such 

indicators exist. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-

generating units to which goodwill is allocated. 

 

When value in use calculation is undertaken, management must estimate the 

expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a 

suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash 

flows. Further details of the carrying value are given in Note 15. 
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3. Significant accounting estimates (contd.) 

 

  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (contd.) 

 

(b) Impairment of loans and receivables  

 

The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any 

objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there 

is objective evidence of impairment, the Group and the Company consider 

factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties 

of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. 

 

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of 

future cash flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets 

with similar credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the Group‘s and 

the Company‘s loans and receivable at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 

18.  

 

 (c) Deferred tax assets  

 

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be 

utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount 

of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based on the likely timing and level 

of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

 

 Assumptions about generation of future taxable profits depend on management‘s 

estimates of future cash flows. These depend on estimates of future production 

and sales volume, operating costs, capital expenditure, dividends and other capital 

management transactions. Judgement is also required about application of income 

tax legislation. These judgements and assumptions are subject to risks and 

uncertainty, hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter 

expectations, which may impact the amount of deferred tax assets recognised in 

the statements of financial position and the amount of unrecognised tax losses and 

unrecognised temporary differences. 

 

The carrying value of deferred tax assets of the Group at 31 December 2014 was 

RM22,382,884 (2013: RM24,063,059) and the recognised unabsorbed 

reinvestment, investment tax, capital and agriculture allowances of the Group was 

RM77,492,976 (2013: RM87,852,404). 
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4. Revenue 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 

Sale of goods 1,557,816,317 1,633,928,865 - - 

Rental income 191,374 182,376 - - 

Dividend income - - - 6,615,000 

Management fee income - - 672,200 659,450 

Interest income  184,336 354,417 5,478,882 3,242,405 

  ––––––––––– ––––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– 

  1,558,192,027 1,634,465,658 6,151,082 10,516,855 

  ========== ========== ======== ======== 

 

5. Finance costs 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 

Interest expense on: 

- Bank overdraft       356,991 820,820 - - 

- Revolving credit     3,330,576 4,955,294 438,714 - 

- Tawarruq flexi-term          

 financing-i profit 242,447 330,559 - - 

- Term loan     8,875,415 9,017,953 - - 

- Bankers‘ acceptance     2,734,959 2,686,683 - - 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 

  15,540,388 17,811,309 438,714 - 

Less: Amount capitalised in  

biological assets (Note 12) (4,728,822) (5,759,705) - - 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 

 10,811,566 12,051,604 438,714 - 

  ======== ======== ====== ====== 
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6. Profit before tax  

 

The following amounts have been included in arriving at profit before tax: 

 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 

 Auditors‘ remuneration: 

  Statutory audit   

  - current year 187,300 170,200 64,000 64,000 

  - under provision in previous 

    years  6,000 11,000 -  5,300 

  Other services - 168,000 - 168,000 

 Depreciation of property, plant 

  and equipment (Note 13) 28,182,232 27,906,379 9,341 15,325 

 Employee benefits expense  

  (Note 7) 80,550,565 79,721,981 1,433,417 1,311,357 

 Non-executive directors‘  

 remuneration (Note 8) 1,633,694 1,576,074 174,800 182,000 

 Operating lease payment  

  on land and buildings 1,964,275 1,764,011 261,301 261,301 

 (Gain)/loss on disposal of  

  property, plant and  

  equipment (210,826) 27,871 - - 

 Impairment of goodwill  

  on consolidation (Note 15) - 82,137 - - 

 Interest income (6,605,671) (6,300,356) (5,478,882) (3,242,405) 

 Net fair value (gain)/loss on 

  derivatives (627,969) 2,054,591 - - 

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)     

  - realised 6,689,532 3,378,148 - - 

  - unrealised (2,957,307) (2,204,543) - - 

 Rental income  (286,421) (247,676) - - 

  ========= ======== ======== ======== 
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7. Employee benefits expense 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 

 Salaries, wages and other 

  emoluments 77,077,010 77,548,048 1,304,928  1,191,368 

 Contribution to defined 

  contribution plans 4,673,599 4,156,180 128,489  119,989 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

  81,750,609 81,704,228 1,433,417 1,311,357  

 Less:  Amount capitalised in  

         biological assets 

         (Note 12) (1,200,044) (1,982,247) -  - 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

  80,550,565 79,721,981 1,433,417 1,311,357 

  ======== ======== ======= ======= 

 

Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are executive 

directors‘ remuneration amounting to RM4,100,841 (2013: 4,166,633) and RM214,800 

(2013: RM219,600), respectively, as further disclosed in Note 8. 

 

8. Directors’ remuneration 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

Directors of the Company 

 

Executive: 

Salaries and other  

  emoluments 3,930,041 4,005,633 106,800 111,600 

Fees 170,800 161,000 108,000 108,000 

  –––––––– –––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 

  4,100,841 4,166,633 214,800 219,600 

  –––––––– –––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 

   

Non-executive: 

Other emoluments 64,800 72,000 64,800 72,000 

Fees 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 

  –––––––– –––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 

  174,800 182,000 174,800 182,000 

  –––––––– –––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 

  4,275,641 4,348,633 389,600 401,600 

  –––––––– –––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 
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8. Directors’ remuneration (contd.) 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

Directors of subsidiaries 

 

Non-executive: 

 

Allowances 1,334,781 1,267,674 - - 

Fees 124,113 126,400 - - 

  –––––––– –––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 

  1,458,894 1,394,074 - - 

  –––––––– –––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 

Total 5,734,535 5,742,707 389,600  401,600 

  ======= ======= ====== ====== 

 

 Analysed as: 

 

 Total executive directors‘  

   remuneration (Note 7) 4,100,841 4,166,633 214,800 219,600 

 Total non-executive directors‘ 

   remuneration (Note 6) 1,633,694 1,576,074 174,800 182,000 

  –––––––– –––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 

  5,734,535 5,742,707 389,600 401,600 

  ======= ======= ====== ====== 

 

The number of the directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the 

financial year fell within the following bands is analysed below: 

 

 Number of Directors 

 Executive Non-executive 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

Range of remuneration 

 

RM50,001 to RM150,000 - - 3 3 

RM500,001 to RM800,000 1 1 - - 

RM3,000,001 to RM4,000,000 1 1 - - 

 ==== ==== ==== ==== 
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9. Tax expense/(income) 
 

 Major components of income tax expense 
 
 The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 

2013 are: 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

Statements of comprehensive  
   income: 

Current income tax: 

Based on results for the year 7,189,086 2,165,075 880,000 2,071,512 

Under/(over) provision in  

 respect of previous years 216,942 222,246 (26,129) (2,374) 

  ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

 7,406,028 2,387,321 853,871  2,069,138  

  ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

Deferred income tax (Note 16): 

Origination and reversal of 

 temporary differences  6,146,735 (1,314,753) - - 

Under/(over) provision in  

 respect of previous years 80,497 (1,400,868) - - 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

  6,227,232 (2,715,621) - - 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

Income tax expense recognised 

 in profit or loss 13,633,260 (328,300) 853,871 2,069,138 

  ======== ======== ======= ======= 
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9. Tax expense/(income) (contd.) 

 

The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by 

the applicable corporate tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as 

follows: 

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

 Group 

  

Accounting profit before tax 46,649,813 36,525,463 

  ========= ========= 

 

 Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) 11,662,453 9,131,366 

 Adjustments: 

  Non-deductible expenses 1,738,296 1,353,036 

  Recognition of reinvestment and investment tax allowances (64,928) (9,634,080) 

  Under provision of income tax in respect of  

   previous years 216,942 222,246 

  Under/(over) provision of deferred tax in respect of 

   previous years 80,497 (1,400,868) 

  ––––––––– ––––––––– 

 Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 13,633,260 (328,300) 

  ======== ======== 

 

 Company 

 

 Accounting profit before tax 2,892,124 7,955,341 

  ======== ======== 

 

 Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) 723,031 1,988,835 

 Adjustments: 

  Non-deductible expenses 156,969 82,677 

  Over provision of income tax in respect of  

   previous years (26,129) (2,374) 

  –––––––– –––––––– 

 Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 853,871 2,069,138 

  ======= ======= 

 

 Income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) of the 

estimated assessable profit for the year.   
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10. Basic earnings per share 

 

 Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the Group‘s profit for the year, 

net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company of RM33,291,065 (2013: RM37,063,065) 

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year of 

93,500,000 (2013: 89,541,096). 

 

There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares. As such, the diluted earnings per share of 

the Group is equivalent to basic earnings per share. 

 

11. Dividends 

 Group and Company 

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

Recognised during the financial year:   

   

Dividends on ordinary shares:    

- Final dividend for 2012:   

  5 sen tax exempt (single tier), per share - 4,675,000 

- Final dividend for 2013:   

  5 sen tax exempt (single tier), per share 4,675,000 - 

 ––––––––– ––––––––– 

 4,675,000 4,675,000 

 ======== ======== 

 

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final tax exempt (single tier) dividend in 

respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 of 4% on 93,500,000 ordinary shares 

will be proposed for shareholders‘ approval. The financial statements for the current 

financial year do not reflect the proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the 

shareholders, will be accounted for in the Statement of Changes in Equity as an 

appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2015. 
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12. Biological assets 

 Group 

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

Cost 

 

At 1 January 502,437,910 482,943,421  

Additions 13,159,679 19,494,489  

 –––––––––– –––––––––– 

At 31 December 515,597,589 502,437,910   

 ========= ========= 

 

Included in the biological assets are the following expenses incurred and capitalised 

during the financial year: 

 

 Group 

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

   

Interest expense (Note 5) 4,728,822 5,759,705  

Employee benefits expense (Note 7) 1,200,044 1,982,247 

 –––––––– –––––––– 

 5,928,866 7,741,952 

 ======= ======= 

 

Included in employee benefits expense are provident fund contributions paid amounting 

to RM77,801(2013: RM104,552). 
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13. Property, plant and equipment  

     Furniture,    

     fittings, 

   Capital  equipment 

 Leasehold  work-in- and Plant and  Motor 

 land Buildings progress renovation machinery vehicles Ranch Total 

   Group RM RM  RM RM RM RM RM RM 

 

Cost: 

 

At 1 January 2013 168,573,247 77,723,807 58,726,468 11,570,430 209,657,703 11,544,658 66,841 537,863,154 

Additions 21,250 24,800 24,570,884 865,195 2,699,108 2,555,920 - 30,737,157  

Reclassification - 17,785,095 (75,404,471) - 57,619,376 - - -  

Disposals - - - (8,618) (291,160) (77,000) - (376,778)  

Adjustments (21,913) - - - - - - (21,913)  

 –––––––––– ––––––––––  ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––– –––––––––– 

At 31 December 2013 and 

 1 January 2014 168,572,584 95,533,702 7,892,881 12,427,007 269,685,027 14,023,578 66,841  568,201,620 

Additions 6,750,220 4,490,452 7,784,242 654,545 2,867,429 589,670 1,200 23,137,758  

Reclassification - 2,130,869 (3,291,295) 72,361 1,081,315 - 6,750 -  

Disposals - - - (350) (268,343) (516,800) - (785,493)  

 –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––– –––––––––– 

At 31 December 2014 175,322,804 102,155,023 12,385,828 13,153,563 273,365,428 14,096,448 74,791 590,553,885 

 ========= ========= ======== ======== ========= ======== ====== ========= 
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13. Property, plant and equipment (contd.) 

     Furniture,    
     fittings, 
   Capital  equipment 

 Leasehold  work-in- and Plant and  Motor 

 land Buildings progress renovation machinery vehicles Ranch Total 

   Group (contd.) RM RM  RM RM RM RM RM RM 
 

Accumulated depreciation: 
 
At 1 January 2013 29,501,438 24,989,703 -   7,277,067  80,923,058  9,026,842  37,108  151,755,216 

Depreciation charge for the  

  year (Note 6) 3,102,436 3,560,612 - 1,010,610 18,790,175 1,437,347 5,199 27,906,379  

Disposals - - - (6,343) (200,021) (76,999) - (283,363) 
 –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––– –––––––––– 

At 31 December 2013 and  

 1 January 2014 32,603,874 28,550,315 - 8,281,334 99,513,212 10,387,190 42,307 179,378,232 

Depreciation charge for the  

  year (Note 6) 3,267,444 3,525,987 - 1,022,357 19,025,416 1,335,035 5,993 28,182,232  

Disposals - - - (349) (264,672) (368,798) - (633,819) 

 –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––– –––––––––– 

At 31 December 2014 35,871,318 32,076,302 - 9,303,342 118,273,956 11,353,427 48,300 206,926,645 

 ========= ========= ======== ======== ========= ======== ====== ========= 

Net carrying amount: 
 

At 31 December 2013 135,968,710 66,983,387 7,892,881 4,145,673 170,171,815 3,636,388 24,534 388,823,388 

 ========= ========= ======== ======== ========= ======== ====== ========= 

At 31 December 2014 139,451,486 70,078,721 12,385,828 3,850,221 155,091,472 2,743,021 26,491 383,627,240  

 ========= ========= ======== ======== ========= ======== ====== ========= 

 

Certain leasehold land, buildings, plant and machinery with a net carrying amount of RM74,085,250, RM53,140,357 and RM124,745,981 (2013: 

RM69,038,492, RM48,052,719 and RM137,954,704), respectively, are pledged for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. 
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13. Property, plant and equipment (contd.) 
 

 Motor Furniture  

 vehicles and fittings Renovation Total 

 RM RM RM RM 

Company 

 

Cost: 
 

At 1 January 2013 491,440 252,588 240,106 984,134 

Additions - 3,872 - 3,872 

 ––––––– ––––––– –––––––– ––––––– 

At 31 December 2013 and 

  1 January 2014 491,440 256,460 240,106 988,006 

Additions - 3,520 - 3,520 

 ––––––– ––––––– –––––––– ––––––– 

At 31 December 2014 491,440 259,980 240,106 991,526 

 ====== ====== ======= ====== 
 

Accumulated depreciation: 
 

At 1 January 2013 491,271 206,190 236,024 933,485 

Depreciation charge for the year 

  (Note 6) 165 12,196 2,964 15,325 

 ––––––– ––––––– –––––––– ––––––– 

At 31 December 2013 and 

  1 January 2014 491,436 218,386 238,988 948,810 

Depreciation charge for the year  

  (Note 6)    - 9,153 188 9,341  

 ––––––– ––––––– ––––––– ––––––– 

At 31 December 2014 491,436 227,539 239,176 958,151 

 ====== ====== ====== ====== 
 

Net carrying amount: 
 

At 31 December 2013 4 38,074 1,118 39,196 

 ====== ====== ======= ====== 
 

At 31 December 2014 4 32,441 930 33,375 

 ====== ====== ======= ====== 
 

14. Investments in subsidiaries 

 Company 

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

   

 Unquoted shares, at cost  82,542,959 82,542,959 

  ======== ======== 
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14. Investments in subsidiaries (contd.) 

 

 Details of subsidiaries, all of which are incorporated in Malaysia, are shown below: 
 

  Proportion of 

  ownership interest 

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities 2014 2013 

   % % 

Direct subsidiaries of the Company 
   

Bintulu Lumber Development Cultivation of oil palm, 100 100 

Sdn. Bhd.  processing of fresh fruit 

  bunches and sales 

  of related products  

Kirana Palm Oil Refinery Operation of palm oil 100 100 

Sdn. Bhd.  refinery and kernel  

  crushing plant 
 

Subsidiaries of Bintulu Lumber 

 Development Sdn. Bhd.    

   

 Grand Mutual Sdn. Bhd. Cultivation of oil palm and 100 100 

   stone quarry operation 

 Niamas Istimewa Sdn. Bhd.*  Cultivation of oil palm 69.9 69.9 

 Rela Aman Sdn. Bhd. Letting of property 80 80 

 BLD Resources Sdn. Bhd.  Dormant (intended for 100 100 

   oil palm plantation) 

 Easibright Sdn. Bhd.*(i)  Dormant 100 - 

  

* not audited by McMillan Woods Mea. 
 

(i) Acquisition of a subsidiary 
 

On 9 December 2014, Bintulu Lumber Development Sdn. Bhd. (―BLD‖) 

acquired 2 ordinary shares of RM1 each in Easibright Sdn. Bhd. (―EBSB‖) with 

a total purchase consideration of RM2.00. The acquisition was satisfied by 

cash. 

 

The cost of acquisition comprised the following: 

         RM  

 Purchase consideration satisfied by cash     2   

     === 
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14. Investments in subsidiaries (contd.) 

 

(i) Acquisition of a subsidiary (contd.) 

 

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows: 

 

 

Fair value 

Acquiree’s 

carrying 

amount 

 RM RM 

Cash in hand 2 2 

Payables (3,916) (3,916) 

 ––––– ––––– 

Total (3,914) (3,914) 

 ===== ===== 

   

The cash outflow from acquisition is as follows: 

  RM 

Purchase consideration satisfied by cash  2 

Cash in hand of a subsidiary acquired  (2) 

  ––––– 

Net cash outflow of the Group  - 

  ===== 
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15. Goodwill 

     Group 

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

   

At 1 January - 82,137 

Impaired during the year (Note 6) - (82,137) 

 ––––––– ––––––– 

At 31 December - - 

 ====== ====== 

  

Goodwill arising from business combinations has been allocated to cash-generating 

units (―CGU‖) for impairment testing. 

 

There is no carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the Group‘s CGU during the 

financial year. 

   

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations 

using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management 

covering a three-year period. 

 

The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its 

cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill: 

 

(i) Projected gross margin 

   

 The basis is based on the forecasted margin to be achieved for the projected 

years.  

 

(ii) Discount rates 

 

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the 

segment. 
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16. Deferred tax 

 Group 

  2014  2013  

  RM  RM  

 

At 1 January  (143,817,662)  (146,533,283)  

 Recognised in statements  

 of comprehensive income  

 (Note 9)  (6,227,232)  2,715,621  

  ––––––––––  ––––––––––  

At 31 December  (150,044,894)  (143,817,662)  

  =========  =========  

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 

to set-off current assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income 

taxes relate to the same tax authority. The net deferred tax assets and liabilities shown 

on the statements of financial position after appropriate offsetting are as follows: 

  

 Group  

   2014 2013  

   RM RM  

 

Deferred tax assets, net   - 1,308,039  

Deferred tax liabilities, net  (150,044,894)  (145,125,701)  

  ––––––––––  ––––––––––  

  (150,044,894)  (143,817,662)  

  =========  =========  

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to offsetting are summarised as follows: 

  

 Group  

   2014 2013  

   RM RM  

     

Deferred tax assets  22,382,884  24,063,059  

Deferred tax liabilities  (172,427,778)  (167,880,721)  

  ––––––––––  ––––––––––  

  (150,044,894)  (143,817,662)  

  =========  =========  
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16. Deferred tax (contd.) 

 

The components and movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the 

financial year prior to offsetting are as follows: 

 

 Group   

  

 Deferred tax assets 

   Unabsorbed, 

   reinvestment, 

   investment tax, 

   capital and 

   Other agriculture 

   payables allowances Total 

   RM RM RM 

 

 At 1 January 2013  1,994,220 8,510,790 10,505,010 

 Recognised in statement of  

  comprehensive income  105,738 13,452,311 13,558,049 

   –––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

 At 31 December 2013   2,099,958 21,963,101 24,063,059 

 Recognised in statement of  

 comprehensive income  909,682 (2,589,857) (1,680,175) 

   –––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

 At 31 December 2014  3,009,640 19,373,244 22,382,884 

   ======= ========= ========= 

 

 Deferred tax liabilities 

  Land, Accelerated 

  buildings and capital  

  biological assets allowances Total 

  RM RM RM 

 

 At 1 January 2013 (51,287,198) (105,751,095) (157,038,293) 

 Recognised in statement of  

  comprehensive income 377,812 (11,220,240) (10,842,428) 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

 At 31 December 2013 (50,909,386) (116,971,335) (167,880,721) 

 Recognised in statement of  

  comprehensive income 377,812 (4,924,869) (4,547,057) 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– –––—––––– 

 At 31 December 2014 (50,531,574) (121,896,204) (172,427,778) 

  ========= ========= ========= 
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17. Inventories 

    Group   

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

 At cost 

 

 Canteen goods 139,360 146,645 

 Livestock 746,046 646,634 

 Consumables - 17,406,306 

 Finished goods 40,577 66,032,922 

 Raw materials 19,582,858 37,027,362 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– 

  20,508,841 121,259,869 

 At net realisable value 

 

 Finished goods 105,450,182 34,983,141 

 Raw materials 574,426 609,403 

 

  106,024,608 35,592,544 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– 

  126,533,449 156,852,413  

  ========= ========= 

 

During the financial year, the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in cost of 

sales of the Group was RM1,228,916,072 (2013: RM1,330,895,348). 
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18. Trade and other receivables 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 

 Trade receivables 

  

 Third parties 45,763,563 112,764,672 - - 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

 Other receivables 

 

 Other receivables 509,880 320,390 4,516  - 

 Deposits 465,815 9,943,050 45,610  45,610 

 Amounts due from 

  subsidiaries - - 106,462,019 88,442,154 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

   975,695 10,263,440 106,512,145  88,487,764 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

 Total trade and other 

  receivables  46,739,258 123,028,112 106,512,145  88,487,764 

 

 Add: Cash and bank  

       balances (Note 19) 353,069,698 263,175,736 25,269,057 20,678,385 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– 

 Total loans and receivables 399,808,956 386,203,848 131,781,202 109,166,149 

  ========= ========= ========= ========= 

 

(a) Trade receivables 

 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 2 to 90 day 

(2013: 2 to 90 day) terms. They are recognised at their original invoice 

amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. 
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18. Trade and other receivables (contd.) 

 

(a) Trade receivables (contd.) 

 

  Ageing analysis of trade receivables 

 

The ageing analysis of the Group‘s trade receivables is as follows: 

 

    Group   

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

 

Neither past due nor impaired  45,750,949 112,754,930  

 

1 to 30 days past due not impaired   2,180 - 

More than 120 days past due not impaired  10,434 9,742 

 

 12,614 9,742 

 –––––––––– –––––––––– 

 45,763,563 112,764,672 

 ========= ========= 

 

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired 

 

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy 

debtors with good payment records with the Group.  

 

None of the Group‘s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired 

have been renegotiated during the financial year. 

 

Receivables that are past due but not impaired 

 

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM12,614 (2013: RM9,742) 

that are past due at the reporting date but not impaired.  

 

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries 

 

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed terms of 

repayment. These amounts earn interest at 4.60% to 5.75% (2013: 4.60% to 

6.27%) per annum. 
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19. Cash and bank balances 

 Group  Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 

Cash in hand and at bank 277,214,668 242,651,916 25,269,057 154,565 

Short term deposits with  

 licensed banks 75,855,030 20,523,820 - 20,523,820 

 –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Cash and bank balances 353,069,698 263,175,736 25,269,057 20,678,385 

 ========= ========= ======== ======== 

 

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-

term deposits are made for a period of one month (2013: one month) depending on 

the immediate cash requirements of the Group and the Company, and earn interest at 

the respective short-term deposit rates. The weighted average effective interest rates 

for short term deposits as at 31 December 2014 for the Group and the Company were 

3.53% (2013: 3.04%) and 3.51% (2013: 3.10%), respectively. 

 

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the 

following at the reporting date: 

 

 Group  Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 

Cash and bank balances  353,069,698 263,175,736 25,269,057 20,678,385 

Bank overdrafts (Note 21) (2,191,843) (1,828,588) - - 

 –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Cash and cash equivalents 350,877,855 261,347,148 25,269,057 20,678,385 

 ========= ========= ======== ======== 
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20. Derivatives 

   Group 

            2014          2013 

  Contract/  Contract/  

  notional  notional 

  amount Liabilities amount Liabilities 

  RM RM RM  RM 

 Non-hedging 

  derivatives: 

 

Forward currency contracts 129,274,142 1,230,957 137,460,200  1,858,926 

 ========= ======= =========  ======= 

 

The Group uses forward currency contracts to manage some of the transaction exposure. 

These contracts are not designated as cash flow or fair value hedges and are entered into for 

periods consistent with currency transaction exposure and fair value changes exposure. 

Such derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting.  

 

Forward currency contracts are used to hedge the Group‘s sales denominated in United 

Stated Dollars (USD) for which firm commitments existed at the reporting date.   

 

During the financial year, the Group recognised a loss of RM1,230,957 (2013: 

RM1,858,926) arising from fair value changes of derivative liabilities. The fair value 

changes are attributable to changes in foreign exchange spot and forward rates. The 

methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair values of derivatives are 

disclosed in Note 26. 

 

21. Loans and borrowings 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

Current 
 

Secured: 

 

Bank overdraft (Note 19) 2,191,843 1,828,588 - - 

Revolving credit 114,000,000 130,000,000 25,000,000 - 

Tawarruq flexi-term financing-i - 10,000,000 - - 

Term loans 39,568,939 33,672,927 - - 

Bankers‘ acceptances 78,557,000 94,000,000 - - 

 ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– ––––– 

 234,317,782 269,501,515 25,000,000 - 

 ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– ––––– 
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21. Loans and borrowings (contd.) 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

Non-current 
 

Secured: 

 

Term loans 140,730,805 138,523,974 - - 

 ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– ––––– 

 375,048,587 408,025,489 25,000,000 - 

 ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– ––––– 

 

 (a) The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowings as at 31 December 2014 

and 2013 were as follows: 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

Repayable within one year 234,317,782 269,501,515 25,000,000 - 

One year to five years 140,730,805 131,241,964 - - 

Over five years - 7,282,010 - - 

 ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– ––––– 

 375,048,587 408,025,489 25,000,000 - 

 ––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– ––––– 

 

(b) The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date for borrowings were as 

follows: 

 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 % % % % 

  

Bank overdraft 7.10 - 7.85 7.25 - 7.60 - - 

Revolving credit 4.20 - 5.25 4.20 - 5.40 4.64 - 4.74 - 

Tawarruq flexi-term financing-i 4.65 - 4.78 4.60 - 4.63 - - 

Term loans 4.35 - 5.85 4.40 - 6.27 - - 

Bankers‘ acceptances 2.64 - 3.82 2.81 - 3.28 - - 
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21. Loans and borrowings (contd.) 

 

(c) The bank overdrafts, revolving credit, term loans and bankers‘ acceptances are 

secured by certain landed properties of subsidiaries, debentures over the fixed and 

floating assets of a subsidiary, specific debenture on plant, machinery and 

equipment of a subsidiary, corporate guarantees from the Company and a subsidiary 

and an irrecoverable letter of undertaking to charge the project land of a subsidiary. 

 

 

22. Trade and other payables 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

Trade payables 

Third parties 88,199,953 92,173,816 - - 

 ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

Other payables 

Other payables 4,013,851 7,622,652 66,251 30,393 

Accrued operating expenses 9,735,086 14,144,969 566,075 379,578 

Other deposits 518,304 533,647 - - 

 –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

 14,267,241 22,301,268 632,326 409,971 

 –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

Total trade and other payables 102,467,194 114,475,084 632,326 409,971 

Add: Loans and borrowings 

     (Note 21)  375,048,587 408,025,489 25,000,000 - 

 ––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

Total financial liabilities  

  carried at amortised cost 477,515,781 522,500,573 25,632,326 409,971 

 ========= ========= ======== ======== 

 

(a) Trade payables 

 

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 90 day (2013: 90 day) 

terms. 

 

(b) Other payables 

 

These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand.   
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23. Share capital and share premium 

 

  Group and Company 

   Number of ordinary 

   shares of RM1 each    Amount 

   2014 2013 2014 2013 

     RM RM 

 Issued and fully paid 

At 1 January 93,500,000 85,000,000 93,500,000 85,000,000 

Issue of new ordinary shares  

 pursuant to private placement - 8,500,000 - 8,500,000 

   –––––––– ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

 At 31 December 93,500,000 93,500,000 93,500,000 93,500,000 

   ======== ======== ======== ======== 

 

 Authorised 

 

 At 1 January and 31 December 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000 

   ========= ========= ========= ========= 

 

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the 

Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally 

with regard to the Company‘s residual assets. 

 

     Group and Company     

      2014 2013 

     RM RM 

 Share premium 

At 1 January     79,680,555 22,104,355 

Issue of new ordinary shares pursuant to private placement   - 57,800,000 

Shares issue expenses   - (223,800) 

     ––––––––– ––––––––– 

 At 31 December    79,680,555 79,680,555 

     ======== ======== 
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24. Related party transactions 
 

(i) In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial 

statements, the following transactions between the Group and related parties 

took place at term agreed between the parties during the financial year: 
 

  Company 

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

  (a) Transactions with subsidiaries: 
 

  Income 

 

  Dividend income - 6,615,000 

 

  Interest income 5,294,546 2,887,988 

 

   Management fee 672,200 659,450 

     ======= ======= 
 

(b) Transactions with companies in which certain directors of the 

Company and/or persons connected to them have a substantial 

financial interest and/or are directors: 
 
  Group  

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

   Income 
 

 (i)   Sale of goods    1,008,171 960,986 
 

 (ii) Rental income     220,374 201,576 

     ======= ======= 
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24. Related party transactions (contd.) 

 

 (b) Transactions with companies in which certain directors of the 

Company and/or persons connected to them have a substantial 

financial interest and/or are directors: (contd.) 

 

  Group  

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

Expenditure 

 

 (i) Insurance brokerage paid   3,148,518 2,914,337 

 

 (ii) Printing charges paid    151,014 154,189 

 

 (iii) Professional fees paid   1,353,589 1,315,028 

 

 (iv) IT infrastructure and software 

   expenses paid    636,222 556,266 

 

 (v) Purchase of property, plant and  

      machinery and consumables   61,480,148 75,902,214 

 

 (vi) Transportation charges paid   10,328,877 9,109,729 

 

 (vii) Rental of premises paid   1,837,374 1,650,106 

 

 (viii) Administrative expenses paid   149,142 164,512 

 

 (ix) Purchase of crude palm  

   oil and palm kernel   270,316,477 303,939,399 

 

 (x) Security expenses paid   1,475,743 1,118,318 

 

 (xi) Maintenance services paid  68,768 302,105 

 

 (xii) Purchase of fresh fruit bunches  17,536,059 10,947,969 
 

     =========    ========= 
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24. Related party transactions (contd.) 

 

(b) Transactions with companies in which certain directors of the 

Company and/or persons connected to them have a substantial 

financial interest and/or are directors: (contd.) 

 

  Company 

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

  Expenditure 

  

 (i) Insurance brokerage paid  23,087 22,797 

 

 (ii) Printing charges paid    185 5,537 

 

 (iii) Professional fees paid   46,852 6,699 

 

 (iv) IT Infrastructure and software  

   expenses paid    7,632 7,632 

 

 (v) Rental of premises paid   288,779 289,589 

 

 (vi) Administrative expenses paid   2,544 1,272 

    

 (vii) Maintenance services paid  44,774 33,931 

      ======= ======= 

 

(ii) Compensation of key management personnel 

 

 The remuneration of directors who are also members of key management during the 

financial year were as follows: 

 

 Group  Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 

Short term employee benefits 5,659,059 5,655,320 386,000 398,000 

Post employment benefits 

- Defined contribution plans 75,476 87,387 3,600 3,600 

 ———— ———— ———— ———— 

Total directors‘ remuneration 

  (Note 8) 5,734,535 5,742,707 389,600 401,600 

 ======= ======= ======= ======= 
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25. Commitments  

  Group  

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

 (a) Capital commitments 

 

Capital expenditure as at the reporting date were 

 as follows: 

 

Approved and contracted for: 

- Property, plant and equipment 5,256,104 3,741,894 

 ======== ======== 

 

(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessee 

  

The Group has entered into operating lease agreements for the use of land and 

buildings. These leases have a life of between 1 to 5 years with renewal options 

included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the Group by 

entering into these leases. 

 

The future minimum lease payments under operating leases contracted at 

reporting date are as follows: 

 

 Group   Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 

Not later than 1 year 655,447 1,601,163 217,751 261,301 

Later than 1 year and  

 not later 5 years 904,087 549,687 - 217,751 

 ———— ———— ———— ———— 

 1,559,534 2,150,850 217,751 479,052 

 ======= ======= ======= ======= 

 

The lease payments recognised in profit or loss during the financial year is 

disclosed in Note 6. 
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26. Fair value of financial instruments 

 

(a) Determination of fair value 

 

Set out below is a comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of the 

Group‘s and the Company‘s financial instruments, by class, other than those with 

carrying amounts which are reasonable approximations of fair values: 

 

 Carrying amount Fair value 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 Group 

 

Financial liabilities: 

  Derivatives  

- forward currency contract (1,225,728) (1,618,611) (1,230,957) (1,858,926) 

 ======= ======= ======= ======= 

 

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of the financial 

instruments, not carried at fair value are as follows: 

 

Loans, advances and financing 

 

The fair values of fixed rate loans/financing with remaining maturity of less than 

one year and variable rate loans/financing are estimated to approximate their 

carrying amounts. For fixed rate loans/financing with remaining maturity of more 

than one year, the fair values are estimated based on discounted cash flows using 

prevailing market rates of loans/financing of similar credit risks and maturity. The 

fair values of impaired loans/financing are represented by their carrying amounts, 

net of any collective and individual assessment allowances, being the expected 

recoverable amount. 

 

The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value 

and whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair values: 

 

 Note 

 

Trade receivables (current) 18 

Other receivables (current) 18 

Loans and borrowings (current) 21 

Loans and borrowings (non-current) 21 

Trade payables (current) 22 

Other payables (current) 22 
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26. Fair value of financial instruments (contd.) 

 

(a) Determination of fair value (contd.) 

 

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities of the Group and 

Company are reasonable approximation of fair value, either due to their short-

term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market 

interest rates on or near the reporting date. 

 

The fair values of these financial instruments are estimated by discounting 

expected future cash flows at market incremental lending rate for similar types of 

lending, borrowing or leasing arrangements at the reporting date. 

 

(b) Fair value hierarchy 

 

The Group classifies fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that 

reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair 

value hierarchy has the following levels: 

 

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market 

data (unobservable inputs). 

 

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments carried at fair 

values by level of fair value hierarchy: 
 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 RM RM RM RM 

Group 

  2014 

Financial liabilities 

Derivatives 

 - forward currency contracts - (1,230,957) - (1,230,957) 

 ======= ======= ======= ======= 

  2013 

Financial liabilities 

Derivatives 

- forward currency contracts - (1,858,926) - (1,858,926) 

 ======= ======= ======= ======= 
 
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 

year. 
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27. Financial risk management objectives and policies 

 

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations 

and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include interest rate risk, 

credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The Board of Directors reviews and 

agrees policies and procedures for the management of these risks, which are executed by 

the management. The audit committee provides independent oversight to the 

effectiveness of the risk management process. 

 

The following sections provide details regarding the Group‘s and the Company‘s 

exposures to the above mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and 

processes for the management of these risks. 

 

(a) Interest rate risk  

 

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of the Group‘s financial 

instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  

 

The Group‘s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Group‘s 

loans and borrowings. 

 

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk 

 

At the reporting date, if interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/lower, with 

all other variables held constant, the Group‘s profit net of tax would have been 

RM703,000 (2013: RM765,000) lower/higher arising mainly as a result of 

lower/higher floating rate loans and borrowings. 

 

(b) Credit risk 

 

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments 

should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group‘s exposure to credit 

risk arises primarily from trade receivables. For other financial assets (including 

cash and bank balances and derivatives), the Group and the Company minimise 

credit risk by dealing exclusively with reputable banks. 

 

The Group‘s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising 

losses incurred due to credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised 

and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group‘s policy that all customers are 

subject to credit verification procedures. Receivables are monitored on an ongoing 

basis. 
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27. Financial risk management objectives and policies (contd.) 

 

(b) Credit risk (contd.) 

 

Exposure to credit risk 

 

At the reporting date, the Group‘s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented 

by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the 

statements of financial position, including derivatives with negative values. 

 

Credit risk concentration profile 

 

The Group has exposure to certain individual customers. However this does not 

pose significant credit risk to the Group as they are highly reputable customers 

and secured by bank guarantees of customers‘ bankers. 

 

Information regarding trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor 

impaired is disclosed in Note 18. Deposits with banks that are neither past due nor 

impaired are placed with or entered into with reputable financial institutions with 

high credit ratings and no history of default. 

 

(c) Liquidity risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty 

in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group‘s and the 

Company‘s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the 

maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group and the Company manage 

their operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as to ensure that all 

refinancing, repayment and funding needs are met. The Group and the Company 

maintain sufficient level of cash and short term deposits which are expected to be 

sufficient to meet their working capital requirements. 
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27. Financial risk management objectives and policies (contd.) 

 

(c) Liquidity risk (contd.) 

 

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities 

 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group‘s and the 

Company‘s liabilities based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. 

 

  On demand  

  or within One to Over  

  one year  five years five years Total 

 RM RM RM RM 

Group 

 

At 31 December 2014 

  Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables 102,467,194 - - 102,467,194 

Loans and borrowings 244,063,753 152,250,310 - 396,314,063 

Derivatives 1,225,728 - - 1,225,728 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––– 

  Total undiscounted 

         financial liabilities 347,756,675 152,250,310 - 500,006,985 

  ========= ========= ======== ========= 

 

At 31 December 2013 

  Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables 114,475,084 - - 114,475,084 

Loans and borrowings 277,756,053 146,429,044 7,407,314 431,592,411 

Derivatives 1,618,611 - - 1,618,611 

  –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––– 

  Total undiscounted 

         financial liabilities 393,849,748 146,429,044 7,407,314 547,686,106 

  ========= ========= ======== ========= 
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27. Financial risk management objectives and policies (contd.) 

 

(c) Liquidity risk (contd.) 

 

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities 

(contd.) 

 

  On demand      

  or within One to Over    

  one year  five years five years Total 

 RM RM RM RM 

Company 

 

At 31 December 2014 

  Financial liabilities 

 

Trade and other payables, 

  excluding financial  

  guarantees* 632,326 - - 632,326 

 

Loan and borrowings 25,003,178 - - 25,003,178 

  ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––– 

  Total undiscounted 

         financial liabilities 25,635,504 - - 25,635,504 

  ======== ======= ======= ======== 

 

At 31 December 2013 

  Financial liabilities 

 

Trade and other payables, 

  excluding financial  

  guarantees* 409,971 - - 409,971 

  –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– 

  Total undiscounted 

         financial liabilities 409,971 - - 409,971 

  ======= ======= ======= ======= 

 

* At the reporting date, the counterparty to the financial guarantees does not 

have a right to demand cash as the default has not occurred. Accordingly, 

financial guarantees under the scope of FRS 139 are not included in the above 

maturity profile analysis. 
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27. Financial risk management objectives and policies (contd.) 

 

(d) Foreign currency risk 

 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a 

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales that are 

denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Group.  

 

The Group uses forward currency contracts to minimise the currency exposures 

arising from sales after a firm commitment has been entered. It is the Group‘s 

policy not to enter into forward contracts until firm commitment is in place. 

 

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk 

 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group‘s profit net of tax 

to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rates against the functional 

currency of the Group, with all other variables held constant. 

 

  Group  

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

 

USD/RM  - Strengthened 1%    420,000 987,000 

   - Weakened 1%    (420,000) (987,000) 

  ======= ====== 

 

28. Capital management 
 
 

 

The primary objective of the Group‘s and the Company‘s capital management is to 

ensure that they maintain healthy capital ratios to support their business and maximise 

shareholder value.  

 

The Group and the Company manage their capital structure and make adjustments to it, 

in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, 

the Group and the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue 

new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the 

years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.  
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29. Segment information 

 

  The Group‘s reporting is organised and managed in three major business segments.  

The segments are organised and managed to the nature of products produced and 

services provided, which require different business strategies. The reportable segments 

are summarised as follows: 

 

(i) Milling and plantation - cultivation of oil palm, processing of fresh fruit bunches 

and sales of related products; 

 

 (ii) Refinery and kernel crushing plant; and 

 

 (iii) Others - letting of property and investment holding activities. 

 

 Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment 

as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Others comprise mainly 

corporate assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 

 

 The transactions entered between business segments are carried out in the normal 

course of business. Segment revenue, expenses and results include transfer between 

business segments. These transfers are eliminated on consolidation. 

 

 Segment analysis by geographical locations has not been prepared as the Group‘s 

operations are predominantly conducted in Malaysia. 
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29. Segment information (contd.) 

  

 

Milling and 

plantation 

 

Refinery and 

kernel crushing 

plant 

 

 

 

Others 

 

Adjustments 

and elimination 

 

 

 

Notes 

Per consolidated 

financial 

statements  

 RM RM RM RM  RM 

31 December 2014       

Revenue:       

External 45,892,624 1,511,923,693 375,710  -  1,558,192,027 

Inter-segment 303,471,579 - 6,302,621 (309,774,200) A - 

Total revenue 349,364,203 1,511,923,693 6,678,331 (309,774,200)  1,558,192,027 
       

Results:       

Interest income 2,027,590 4,508,895 - (115,150) A 6,421,335 

Depreciation  17,229,466 10,715,562 237,204 -  28,182,232 

Finance costs 6,598,387 8,913,013 709,862 (5,409,696) A 10,811,566 

Profit before tax 30,261,386 13,683,894 2,704,533 -  46,649,813 
       

Assets:       

Additions to non-current assets 25,707,332 10,574,985 15,120 - B 36,297,437 

Segments assets 983,949,239 434,039,371 140,063,374 (127,885,308) C 1,430,166,676 
       

Segments liabilities 454,679,321 271,501,507 30,496,112 (127,885,308) D 628,791,632 
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29. Segment information (contd.) 

  

 

Milling and 

plantation 

 

Refinery and 

kernel crushing 

plant 

 

 

 

Others 

 

Adjustments 

and elimination 

 

 

 

Notes 

Per consolidated 

financial 

statements  

 RM RM RM RM  RM 

31 December 2013       

Revenue:       

External 39,595,462 1,594,333,403 536,793  -  1,634,465,658 

Inter-segment 286,921,874 - 10,416,058 (297,337,932) A - 

Total revenue 326,517,336 1,594,333,403 10,952,851 (297,337,932)  1,634,465,658 
       

Results:       

Interest income 1,216,253 4,806,037 - (76,351) A 5,945,939 

Depreciation  17,455,177 10,207,424 243,778 -  27,906,379 

Finance costs 5,949,957 8,798,777 267,209 (2,964,339) A 12,051,604 

Profit before tax 26,390,631 9,082,308 1,134,661 (82,137)  36,525,463 
       

Assets:       

Additions to non-current assets 30,655,407 19,464,102 90,224 - B 50,209,733 

Segments assets 956,196,966 543,050,658 117,696,103 (174,425,036) C 1,442,518,691 
       

Segments liabilities 448,294,734 390,318,790 5,296,712 (174,425,036) D 669,485,200 
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29. Segment information (contd.) 

  

Notes Nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the 

consolidated financial statements 

 

A Inter-segment revenues and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. 

 

B Additions to non-current assets consist of: 

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

   

Biological assets 13,159,679 19,494,489 

Property, plant and equipment 23,137,758 30,715,244 

 ––––––––– ––––––––– 

 36,297,437 50,209,733 

 ======== ======== 

 

C The following items are deducted from segment assets to arrive at total assets 

reported in the consolidated statement of financial position: 

 

D 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

   

Inter-segment assets (127,885,308) (174,425,036) 

 ========= ========= 

 

D The following items are deducted from segment liabilities to arrive at total 

liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of financial position: 

 

 2014 2013 

 RM RM 

   

Inter-segment liabilities (127,885,308) (174,425,036) 

 ========= ========= 

 

30. Authorisation of financial statements for issue 

  

 The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 were authorised for issue 

in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 28 April 2015. 
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31. Supplementary information - breakdown of retained profits into realised and 

unrealised 

 

The breakdown of the retained profits of the Group and of the Company as at 31 

December 2014 and 31 December 2013 into realised and unrealised profits is presented in 

accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25 March 

2010 and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination 

of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to 

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian 

Institute of Accountants. 

 

 Group  Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 RM RM RM RM 

 Recognised during the  

  financial year: 

 

Total retained profits of the  

  Company and its subsidiaries: 

- Realised 775,484,489 742,021,925 15,607,360 18,244,107 

- Unrealised (148,318,544) (143,472,045) - - 

 –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––– 

Retained profits as per     

 financial statements 627,165,945 598,549,880 15,607,360 18,244,107 

 ========= ========= ======== ======== 

 


